
 

 
Page | 1  Phone No. (415) 899-8900 
 novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213 
   

 

 

  
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
Meeting Minutes  

 
Monday, April 22, 2024 – 7:00 PM 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Commission Present: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and 
Tiernan 
 
Commission Absent: Chair Heath 
 
Staff Present: Community Development Director Clare Hartman, Deputy Community 
Development Director Steve Marshall, David Bergman (Lisa Wise Consulting via Zoom), 
and Ethan Stan (Lisa Wise Consulting via Zoom) 
 

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA 
 
Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and second by 
Commissioner Derby, the Planning Commission voted 6-0-0-1 via roll call to 
approve the final agenda. 
 
AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and Tiernan 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Chair Heath 
Motion Carried. 
 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT – NONE 
 
D. CONSENT ITEMS - NONE 
 
E. UNFINISHED AND OTHER BUSINESS - NONE 

 
F.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

F.1. Consideration of adoption of a resolution recommending City Council amend 
Novato General Plan 2025 by adopting the Revised Draft 6th Cycle Housing 
Element covering the planning period of 2023-2031   

 

https://novato.org/


Page | 2  Phone No. (415) 899-8900 
 novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213 

 

Hold a public hearing to consider adoption of a resolution recommending the City 
Council amend Novato General Plan 2035 by adopting the Revised Draft 6th Cycle 
Housing Element covering the planning period of 2023-2031. 

 
 Director Hartman presented the staff report (PowerPoint presentation). 
 
  Consultant Bergman gave an overview of the goals, polices, and programs of the revised 

Housing Element. 
 
 Commissioner Derby asked about the pipeline projects listed in the revised Housing 

Element. 
 
 Director Hartman responded. 
 
 Commissioner Dawson asked about Builder’s Remedy. 
 
 Director Hartman described Builder’s Remedy. 
 
 Commissioner Crockett asked for staff’s perspective on working with HCD. 
 
 Director Hartman stated it was challenging working with HCD as there were changing 

interpretations. 
 
 Commissioner Crockett questioned who HCD is accountable to and stated housing 

elements seem to be treated like a living document. 
 
 Commissioner Engdahl asked about Novato’s homeless population and what factors 

address this situation – he referenced recent Supreme Court arguments. 
 
 Director Hartman indicated that State law is informed by court cases in terms of 

addressing what jurisdictions can and cannot do to address and support the homeless. 
 
 Consultant Bergman said it was necessary to document where homeless are living in 

Novato. HCD is concerned about jurisdictions acknowledging encampments and locating 
services near these areas. As a result, HCD wanted more detail on the matter. 

 
 Consultant Stan noted various programs of the Housing Element intended to address 

homelessness, including zoning changes to support emergency shelters. 
 
 Commissioner Engdahl asked about the financial implications of the State’s housing 

programs. 
 
 Director Hartman commented the housing element process does not consider 

economics.   
 
 Commissioner Tiernan commented on navigation centers and the debate about whether 

it is a city or county role. 
 

https://novato.org/


Page | 3  Phone No. (415) 899-8900 
 novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213 

 

 Director Hartman noted the City is part of a countywide housing collaborative, but 
working on our own initiatives. She mentioned programs addressing emergency shelters, 
navigation centers, and tenant protections. 

 
 Commissioner Tiernan commented on vacant residential homes. 
 
 Consultant Stan noted Appendix A of the revised Housing Element provides the vacancy 

rate of single-family residences.  
 
 Vice Chair Havel opened the public hearing. 
 
 There were no members of the public desiring to address the Commission. 
 
 Vice Chair Havel closed the public hearing. 
 
 The Commissioners gave their individual perspectives on housing law. 
 

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and second by 
Commissioner Derby, the Planning Commission voted 6-0-0-1 via roll call to adopt 
the resolution recommending the City Council amend Novato General Plan 2035 by 
adopting the Revised Draft 6th Cycle Housing Element covering the planning 
period of 2023-2031. 
 
AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and Tiernan 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Chair Heath 
Motion Carried. 

 
G. GENERAL BUSINESS - NONE 
 
H. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS  
 
 Deputy Director Marshall noted upcoming meetings and agenda items.  
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:24 PM. 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly adopted at the Planning 
Commission meeting of January 27, 2025. 
  
/Steve Marshall/ 
Steve Marshall, Deputy Community Development Director 
 
 

https://novato.org/

